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April 1, 2010
MEMO

TO:  Chairman and Members, Heritage Advisory Committee

FROM:  Rick McCready, Planner
RE:  96-98 Charlotte Street, Sydney- report from ADI Engineering 
Background

As the Committee members are aware, 96-98 Charlotte Street, a property in the North End Sydney Heritage Conservation District, was badly damaged by fire last summer.  Given the extent of the damage, CBRM Building Services recommended demolition of the structure.  However, the Old Sydney Society requested that demolition of the structure not proceed pending completion of a report on the structural soundness of the structure and also of its historical significance.  That report is now complete, and is attached for your perusal.

The report indicates that structurally the building is in very poor shape and will require much work to restore.  However, the research carried out on the building also indicates that part of the structure almost certainly dates to the years immediately following the founding of Sydney in 1785, meaning it is as old, or almost as old, as Cossitt House.

The demolition of any main building in the Heritage Conservation District requires Council approval, and the HAC would be expected to make a recommendation to Council on any demolition permit.  The Committee’s decision should be based on the policy in the HCD Plan regarding demolitions, which is:

Policy HCD-16 

It shall be a policy of Council, when reviewing an application for a Certificate 

of Appropriateness for a demolition, or removal of a main building in the Heritage 

Conservation District to consider the following criteria: 

a) The reasons for the proposed demolition; 

b) The proposed new development for the site (if applicable); 

c) The historical significance of the building; 

d) The architectural significance of the building; 

e) The potential negative effects on the immediate streetscape; and 

f) The advice of the Heritage Advisory Committee, and

g) If available, a report by an architect or engineer licensed to practice in Nova Scotia regarding whether or not retention of the building is feasible where the building is in a damaged or deteriorated state. 

If Council decides to approve a certificate of appropriateness that would allow the demolition, the certificate may be granted unconditionally or with conditions.

Where Council refuses to authorize a certificate of appropriateness that would permit the demolition of a main building, municipal staff will withhold the issuance of a demolition permit for a maximum of two years from the date of application for the demolition permit.  It is intended that during this two year period the Municipality and other interested parties shall explore, in cooperation with the property owner, alternatives to demolition.  However, if at the end of the two-year period no solution has been found that would prevent the demolition of the building, it is Council’s intention to instruct staff to issue the demolition permit. 

In this case, we have a report from an engineer indicating that retention of the building is probably not feasible under normal circumstances. However, we also have a report from an historian (Mr. Eric Krause) indicating that the building does have significant historical value, which is something that must be considered under Policy HCD-16 ( c ).  The entire situation is complicated further by the fact that the Old Sydney Society, the organization advocating preservation of the structure, is not the owner of the property.  The owner (Scottish Kings Realty, a company based in British Columbia) agreed to wait until the ADI study was complete before pursuing demolition, but the study has taken much longer than expected and my understanding is that now the owner does wish to demolish the building.
A recent court case in Halifax involving the demolition of buildings near the waterfront suggests that preventing an owner from demolishing a building when it is clearly not feasible to retain it may not be supportable.

In my view, the solution to this dilemma is for the Old Sydney Society, or another organization with similar motives, to acquire ownership of this property, undertake the necessary steps to secure the building to the satisfaction of CBRM Building Services, and then undertake a plan for the restoration and future use of the building.  If that does not happen, a demolition permit could be granted with conditions attached regarding the retention of certain components of the structure, as recommended by Mr. Krause in his report.
In order to facilitate this, I recommend that: 

· The CBRM Heritage Advisory Committee not make a recommendation to Council at the April 6 meeting regarding the demolition of this property, and to delay the decision to the Committee’s May meeting. (Alternatively, the Committee could forward the matter to Council without recommendation)
· The Old Sydney Society be asked by the CBRM to attempt to negotiate an agreement to purchase this property by May 1, 2010

· The CBRM solicitor be asked to provide, in time for the May HAC meeting, a report on the options open to the CBRM in this case, and the legal implications of those options, should efforts to acquire the property from the current owner prove fruitless.
Yours very truly,

Rick McCready, MCIP, MURP

Planner/Heritage Officer

Rick McCready


Planning Department
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